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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Fort Lawton, located on top of the scenic Magnolia Bluff, consists of a military 
installation of 214 acres. The post is completely surrounded by the newly created 
Discovery Park (1973). A panoramic view of Puget Sound and the Olympic Mountains frames 
the western horizon. Shilshole and Salmon Bay are located to the North. Fort Lawton 
is characterized by circular scenic drives, an open grassy parade ground, and early 
1900 utilitarian and colonial revival styles of architecture. Many of the original 
buildings that were constructed from 1899 thru 1908 are still being utilized. Fort 
Lawton represents a type of architectural design and functional style typical of mili­ 
tary posts of the .early. 1900 era- The Post,Headquarters, officer.? npi^corimiissione4 ( . 
officer^ and enlisted-quarters are all fairly unchanged from tnexf oirig^naL construction, 
The Military Police guard house may _ be "the only.'one^^ pf^t^is'type.remain.mg in the 
Northwest. Th@;parade ground^ although [ not. an^histpric strupture,,.plays.' sai, 
part in.-establishing a generally ,high^ aesthetic.quality; of fhe Fort Lawton " 
The "District" consists of approximately 25 acres of lanci. The^post generally comple­ 
ments the already existing Discovery Park with its wide, winding roads and pathways. 
An atmosphere of open space, yet unique historic interest, is prevalent in every 
sector of Fort Lawton.

The following buildings are considered appropriate for inclusion within the Fort 
Lawton Historic District:

* a. Bldg #640 - Double Officers Quarters constructed in 1904. Interior and 
exterior modification-has .occurred. Continuous use for family hpusing.,

*b. Bldg #642 - Double Officers Quarters constructed in 1904. Interior and 
exterior modifications evident. ,(Bldgs u #64Q-#642 = 6,368 sq ft). ,

*c. 'Bldg #644 - Double Officers Quarters constructed in 1904. 
exterior modifications evident.' (9,680 sq ft). •••••?.-

*d. Bldg #670 - Single Officers Quarters. Constructed in 1904 
exterior'modifications evident. (6,475 sq ft). -.v.

*e. Bldg #672 - Double Officers Quarters constructed in 1899. 
exterior modifications evident. (9,880 sq ft).

*f. Bldg #676 - Double Officers Quarters constructed in 1899. 
exterior modifications evident.

*g. Bldg #678 - Double Officers Quarters constructed in 1899. 
exterior modifications evident.

*h. Bldg #730 - Double Enlisted Barracks constructed in 1904.
*i. Bldg #731 - Double Enlisted Barracks constructed in 1899.
*j. Bldg #733 - Post Exchange constructed in 1905. (Modified).
*k. Bldg #734 - Administrative Building constructed in 1904.

Interior and 

. Interior and 

Interior and 

Interior and 

Interior and

(Modified). (28,500 sq ft; 
(Modified). (34,234 sq ftj
(6,700 sq ft). 

(Modified). (5,808 sq ft).
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- Administrative Building constructed in 1904. (Modified)
- Administrative Building (Quartermaster Shop) constructed

- Civilian Employees Quarters constructed in 1908. (4,776
- Quartermaster Office and Storehouse constructed in 1899.
- Guardhouse and Military Police HQs constructed in 1902.
- Double NCO Quarters constructed in 1904. (17,300 sq ft)
- Double NCO Quarters constructed in 1899. (17,300 sq ft)
- NCO Quarters constructed in 1902.
- Double NCO Quarters constructed in 1899. (1730 sq ft).
- Double NCO Quarters constructed in 1904. (1730 sq ft)
- (South half) Quartermaster Office constructed in 1905.

. (1
in

sq
(9

(3,
•

«

,167 sq ft)
1905.

ft).
,610 sq ft)
500 sq

(12,980 sq
- Quartermaster Stables constructed in 1908. (7,392 sq ft).
- Warehouse constructed in 1902. (7,300 sq ft).

ft).

ft).

Parade Ground and Reviewing Stand. Original design 1900.

The structures listed below represent non-conforming intrusions within the district 
boundaries due to either non-period construction (1930s) or extensive interior and 
exterior modifications:

a. Bldg #732 - Gymnasium constructed in 1942.
b. Bldg #756 - Commissary Warehouse constructed in 1939.
c. Bldgs #901, 902, 904 - NCO Quarters constructed in 1930s.
d. Bldg #666 - Radar Tower.
e. Bldg #653 - Operations Tower.
f. Bldg #918 - FE building reconstructed 1932.
g. All other buildings not listed in the inclusion list.

* Architecturally, the buildings are classified as colonial in style - a rather austere and simplified 
version of colonial architecture originating in the East and South in the late 18th and early 19th 
centuries, at a time when both Greek and Renaissance motifs were being introduced. The interiors 
of these buildings are generally bare of ornamental detail, with plain plaster walls and high ceilings.

Foundation Walls: Squared, broken faced sandstone, random coursed, about 20 inches thick, tightly 
jointed with tooled hard mortar. In some cases, brick or combination brick and stone. In many 
cases, foundation walls are well painted inside and out.

(PLEASE SEE ATTACHED CONTINUATION SHEET)
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Structural Framing: Where exposed to view, the framing lumber is fir, surfaced two sides, per­ 
haps 50% of it clear. The floors are stiff and level without detectable deflections. Generally, 
spans are transverse and limited to less than 16 feet. In the larger buildings, most have metal- 
covered longitudinal wood beams at or near the centerline of wings. These are supported by ex­ 
posed cast iron columns with molded base and caps. Exterior and original interior walls are also 
stiff and plumb. Roof planes are flat, ridges straight. There are no signs of framing weaknesses 
or deterioration.

Exterior Finishes: Painted lapped cedar siding one-half inch thick, four inches to the weather, 
butted against one and one-quarter inch corner covers and set against heavy section water tables 
and foundation cover boards.

Porches: Porch superstructures are a prominent feature of all but the service buildings. Porch 
columns are nicely turned in wood, with entasis and well proportioned Doric caps and bases. 
Some porch columns are square or have squared section below rail height. In most cases, the 
molded base of turned columns is of cast iron with separate cast iron draining base pads resting 
on porch deck.

Ornamental Details: Ornamental details consist of various Palladian window combinations in 
front-facing gables, various combinations of oval and fan windows. Some cornices are fitted 
with Consoles and Dentils. Service buildings with hung gutters often have scrolled rafter ends.

Windows: Sash are all double hung, a few fixed, two and one-quarter inch section, sills two 
and one-half inch. Most sash are two-pane vertically divided, a few six-pane and twelve-pane.

Roof: Roofing on main roof planes of all Group 1 buildings was originally slate. At present, 
only eight of the twenty-five buildings have the original slate roof.

Interior Finishes:

Floors: Basement floors are concrete, smooth troweled with tooled joints often well painted or 
covered with composition floor tile. There is very little evidence of moisture problems and very 
minor cracking of floor slabs. First and second floors are all covered with composition floorings 
of various types, except in residences and utility buildings. Some coverings are stained and 
worn in part, but with minor repairs are probably acceptable for most uses. Stair treads are also 
covered and are usually fitted with aluminum nosings. Officers' Quarters have hardwood floors 
of maple or oak in living spaces, composition in kitchens and baths, with some tiled baths.
NCO Quarters have hardwood on first floors, fir on second floors. 
(PLEASE SEE ATTACHED CONTINUATION SHEET)
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Walls: Original interior walls and interior partitions are plastered on wood lath. Plaster 
is a hard type, measuring 3/4-inch over lath where observed.

Ceilings: Basement ceilings are brown coat plastered about 1/4-inch over lath. Original first 
floor ceilings in most buildings are embossed sheet metal in several ornamental patterns. These 
are the principal ornamental features of the interiors. In remodeled areas, these have been 
covered with furred or suspended acoustical ceilings of various types.

Trim: Interior doors are of various panel patterns, generally 2-inch thick stiles and rails. 
Door casings, window casings, chair rail (where existing) and similar trim generally 2-1/2 
inch half-oval pattern.
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Fort Lawtoh, named' after General Henry'Ware Lawtpn o'f 0^yil. and'Spanish war £ame ; /viras 
established in 18$8. The post was developed as'part of a concept of coastal defense ,

• • • ' i ' 1 ~~L ' •!• - ^ - J. ; ' ii -^ >-"••/ -..».*» , • — e \ • •»•>'.• \ * ,•.-.'

installations designed to protect Puget Sound and the Bremerton Naval Shipyards from an,-; 
enemy sea'attack. General Nelson Miles and'General jDtis,_ together 'with' Secretary,, ofWar 
Lamont, and many'local Seattle politicians, were instrumental in : the1 selection of the 
site located on Magnolia Bluff.
The Seattle Chamber of Commerce's Land Acquisition Committee was responsible for the 
donation of 1107 acres to the Government in 1898. Fort Lawton was designed to complement 
a series of coastal forts designated as Forts Whitman, Worden, Casey, Flagler, and Ward, 
and to serve as an infantry headquarters. The first military unit to arrive was a 
battery of the 32d Coast Artillery in July 1901. Company B, 17th Infantry, arrived 
during May 1902. Construction of the "original" quarters began in 1898 with the 
designing and building of the various officer, NCO, and troop billets. It was during 
this initial construction that .the parade grounds,and roads were^designecl, r 1he. post 
was officially established 1 under General Order'Number 20, War"Department, 9 February
1909- .-,. .-, - -,.--;-,.-- .,-• •-->,' -r; •- 
During 1902 the command of the North Pacific Artillery District was 'relocated from
Fort Lawton to Fort Flagler. The command was designated as .the "Puget Sound-Harbor 
Defense." This defense command consisted of Fort Flagler, Ward, Casey, and Whitman. 
No artillery shore batteries were ever installed within Fort Lawton due to^the, better 
defensive positions of Fort Flagler.
John C. Olmsted, son of Fredrick Law Olmsted, designer of Central Park, New York City, 
and a prominent architect of the period, presented a "Special Report on The Improvement 
of Fort Lawton" during 1910, and although his plan was never carried out it may have 
influenced later construction. Olmsted's proposal was to develop a series of scenic 
drives that would add to and complement those already in existence within the City of 
Seattle. Much of Olmsted's concept may yet be developed with Discovery Park and Fort 
Lawton as many of his ideas remain sound to the present time.
During 1917, Fort Lawton was host to the 14th Infantry Regiment of the 19th Division, 
and the 6th Battalion US Guards. During this period, Fort Lawton played an important 
role in the defense strategy for the Port of Seattle and the Bremerton Naval Shipyard. 
It was also during this period that the headquarters of the North Pacific Coast 
Artillery District was located at Fort Lawton. The 1st Battalion, 44th Infantry 
Regiment, was garrisoned on Fort Lawton beginning in November, 1919.

(PLEASE SEE CONTINUATION SHEET)
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
The Fort Lawton District is located as follows: Commencing at the intersection of Oregon 
Avenue and Iowa Way to the road behind the 700 Building Series, -and proceeding North to 
the vicinity of Buildings 735, 757, excluding 756, 755, 754, to Utah Street. The line 
then proceeds North on Georgia Avenue, including Buildings 903, 905, 906, 9Q7-*r909, 915, 
916, 917, and 918, incorporating the area between Georgia and Kansas Avenues. The district 
line proceeds from the junction of Kansas Avenue and Utah Street East to Washington Avenue
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From the end of World War I until just prior to World War II, Fort Lawton lapsed into a 
period of relative unimportance with most of the military activities centering on the 
National Guard training activities. The Post was offered to the City of Seattle in 1938 
for the price of one dollar, but was refused due to the adverse economic situation of 
the city.
By 1940, Fort Lawton consisted of various administrative and living quarters, plus 
marksmanship ranges, powder magazines, hospital, cemetery, and a golf course. 
1941 was the beginning of the rebirth of Fort Lawton with the designation of the post 
as a major point of troop debarkation. At the height of World War II, over one million 
servicemen were processed thru Fort Lawton for the combat zones of the Pacific and the 
Far East. Additionally, the post was used as a German prisoner of war compound. Once 
again, Fort Lawton's importance diminished after World War II to a position of relative 
insignificance. The post was temporarily revived with the activation of the 49th Air 
Defense Artillery Group in the 1960s. From the period of approximately 1910 thru 1977 
various efforts and pressures were brought to return the post to the City of Seattle. 
During 1971, approximately 391 acres were transferred to the city, forming the nucleus 
of the present day "Discovery Park".
The historical significance of Fort Lawton rests with its close association with the 
City of Seattle during its formative and expansion period of the early 1900s. Fort 
Lawton represented military protection for the Puget Sound region and provided a sense 
of security to the people of the State of Washington. It has long been accessible 
to the people of the region as a place to enjoy charming scenery, parade grounds, and 
the historic buildings of another era.
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and thence Southeast along California Avenue to the service road that is immediately 
to the rear of Buildings 678, 676, 672, 670, 644, 642, and 640 to the point of origin 
on Iowa Way. (See sketch map).


